CITY OF RIO DELL

AGENDA

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL

SPECIAL MEETING

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 27, 2023 - 4:00 P.M.

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 675 WILDWOOD AVENUE

WELCOME... Copies of this agenda, staff reports and other material available to the City Council are available at the City Clerk's office in City Hall, 675 Wildwood Avenue. Your City Government welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend and participate in Rio Dell City Council meetings often.

SPECIAL PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY ALTERATIONS TO MEETING FORMAT CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19)

Effective immediately, the City of Rio Dell will reopen city council meetings held in City Hall Council Chambers to in-person attendance by the public. The public may also attend these meetings virtually through Zoom.

To maintain safety and minimize the health risks associated with COVID-19, participants may be required to complete an Attestation of Vaccination upon entering the City Council Chambers.

Public Comment by Email:

In balancing the health risks associated with COVID-19 and need to conduct government in an open and transparent manner, public comment on agenda items can be submitted via email at publiccomment@cityofriodell.ca.gov. Please note the agenda item the comment is directed to and email no later than one hour prior to the start of the Council meeting. Your comments will be read out loud, for up to three minutes.

Zoom Public Comment:

When the Mayor announces the agenda item that you wish to comment on, call the conference line and turn off your TV or live stream. Please call the toll-free number 1-888-475-4499, enter meeting ID 987 154 0944 and press star (*) 9 on your phone – this will raise your hand. You will continue to hear the meeting on the call. When it is time for public comment on the item you wish to speak on, the Clerk will unmute your phone. You will hear a prompt that will indicate your phone is unmuted. Please state your name and begin your comment. You will have three minutes to comment.

- A. CALL TO ORDER
- B. ROLL CALL
- C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and over which the Council has jurisdiction. As such, a dialogue with the Council or staff is not intended. Items requiring Council action not listed on this agenda may be placed on the next regular agenda for consideration if the Council directs, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of the Council that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgency nature requiring immediate action.

E. SPECIAL MEETING MATTERS/PUBLIC HEARINGS

- 1) 2023/0227.01 Approve Resolution No. 1575-2023 Authorizing the County of Humboldt to make application on the City's behalf to the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) for funds available through the CalHOME Program (DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION)
- 2) 2023/0227.02 Approve Resolution No. 1576-2023 Approving the California of Emergency Services (CalOES) Form 130
 Designating Agents Necessary to Provide for all Matters
 Pertaining to State and Federal Emergency Management
 Agency (FEMA) Reimbursements (DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION)
 35

F. ADJOURNMENT



In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Office of the City Clerk at (707) 764-3532. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility to the meeting.

The next Regular City Council meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, March 7, 2023 at 6:30 p.m.

675 Wildwood Avenue Rio Dell, CA 95562 (707) 764-3532



For Meeting of: February 27, 2023

To:

City Council

From:

Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director

Through:

Kyle Knopp, City Manager

Date:

February 23, 2023

Subject:

Resolution No. 1575-2023 authorizing the County of Humboldt to make application on the City's behalf to the California Department of Housing and Community Development for funds available through the CalHOME Program

Recommendation:

That the City Council:

- Receive a brief staff presentation regarding the Department of Housing and Community
 Developments (HCD) CalHOME Homeownership Super Notice of Funding Availability
 (HOSN or Super NOFA) released on January 6, 2023 for approximately \$130 million in
 funds for Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Assistance and ADU/JADU Construction
 Assistance; and
- 2. Open the public hearing, receive public input, close the public hearing; and
- Adopt Resolution No. 1575-2023 authorizing the County of Humboldt to make application on the City's behalf to the California Department of Housing and Community Development for funds available through the CalHOME Program.

Background and Discussion

As the Council is aware the City of Rio Dell has executed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the County of Humboldt to assist in the administration of the City's Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Programs.

The California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) issued a Homeownership Super Notice of Funding Availability (HOSN or Super NOFA) on January 6, 2023 for approximately \$130 million in funds for the CalHOME Program.

The attached Resolution authorizes the County to submit an application on the City's behalf to participate in the CalHOME Program in response to the NOFA issued on January 6, 2023. The CalHOME funds can be used for the following activities:

A. Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Assistance

The maximum Loan amount by an award recipient to an eligible Borrower will be \$200,000 unless the home is in need of reconstruction. If the home is in need of reconstruction, the maximum Loan amount will be \$250,000. The maximum Loan amount for addition or full reconstruction of an ADU will be \$250,000. The maximum Loan amount for replacement of a manufactured home not on a permanent foundation in the case where it has been determined by the Recipient it is infeasible to rehabilitate the home will be \$150,000. The minimum Loan to a Borrower will be not less than \$1,000.

B. CalHOME ADU/JADU Assistance

The maximum Loan amount by an award recipient to an eligible Borrower for ADU/JADU construction will be \$250,000. The minimum Loan to a Borrower will be not less than \$1,000.

ATTACHMENT 1: Resolution No. 1575-2023 authorizing the County of Humboldt to make application on the City's behalf to the California Department of Housing and Community Development for funds available through the CalHOME Program.

ATTACHMENT 2: 2023 Homeownership Super Notice of Funding Availability (Super NOFA)

Resolution No. 1575-2023



A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT TO MAKE APPLICATION ON THE CITY'S BEHALF TO THE CALIFORNIA STATE DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FOR FUNDING UNDER THE CALHOME PROGRAM; THE EXECUTION OF A STANDARD AGREEMENT IF SELECTED FOR SUCH FUNDING AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO; AND ANY RELATED DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO PARTICIPATE IN THE CALHOME PROGRAM.

WHEREAS, the City of Rio Dell, a political subdivision of the State of California, wishes to apply for an receive an allocation of funds through the CalHOME Program; and

WHEREAS, the City of Rio Dell has executed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the County of Humboldt to assist in the administration of the City's Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Programs; and

WHEREAS, the City of Rio Dell, hereby wishes to and authorizes the County of Humboldt to make application on its behalf to the California Department of Housing and Community Development (hereinafter referred to as "HCD") for funds available through the CalHOME Program; and

WHEREAS, the California Department of Housing and Community Development (hereinafter referred to as "HCD") issued a Homeownership Super Notice of Funding Availability (HOSN or Super NOFA) on January 6, 2023 for approximately \$130 million in funds for the CalHOME Program established by Chapter 84, Statutes of 2000 (SB 1656 Alarcon), and codified in Chapter 6 (commencing with Section 50650) of Part 2 of Division 31 of the Health and Safety Code (the "statute"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the statute, HCD is authorized to approve funding allocations utilizing monies made available by the State Legislature to the CalHOME program, subject to the terms and conditions of the statute and the CalHOME Program Regulations adopted by HCD in April 2004; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rio Dell requests that the County of Humboldt make application on the City's behalf to obtain from HCD an allocation of CalHOME funds in the amount of \$2,000,000.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the City Council as follows:

- 1. Authorizes the County of Humboldt to make application on the City's behalf to the California Department of Housing and Community Development for funds available through the CalHOME Program; and
- 2. The County shall submit the application on the City's behalf to participate in the CalHOME Program in response to the NOFA issued on January 6, 2023, which will request a funding allocation for the following activities all of which are to be located in the City of Rio Dell:

A. Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Assistance

The maximum Loan amount by an award recipient to an eligible Borrower will be \$200,000 unless the home is in need of reconstruction. If the home is in need of reconstruction, the maximum Loan amount will be \$250,000. The maximum Loan amount for addition or full reconstruction of an ADU will be \$250,000. The maximum Loan amount for replacement of a manufactured home not on a permanent foundation in the case where it has been determined by the Recipient it is infeasible to rehabilitate the home will be \$150,000. The minimum Loan to a Borrower will be not less than \$1,000.

B. CalHOME ADU/JADU Assistance

The maximum Loan amount by an award recipient to an eligible Borrower for ADU/JADU construction will be \$250,000. The minimum Loan to a Borrower will be not less than \$1,000.

- 3. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager, or designee, to sign the application and act on, with the County of Humboldt's assistance, all matters pertaining to the application; and
- 4. If the application for funding is approved, the City of Rio Dell hereby agrees to use the CalHOME funds for eligible activities in the manner presented in the application as approved by HCD and in accordance with program regulations cited above. The application in full is incorporated as part of the Standard Agreement. Any and all activities funded, information provided, and timelines represented in the application are enforceable through the Standard Agreement. The City of Rio Dell acknowledges and agrees that it may be required to

execute any and all other instruments necessary or required by HCD for participation in the CalHOME Program; and

- 5. The City Council of the City of Rio Dell hereby authorizes the City Manager, or designee, to execute in the name of the City of Rio Dell, the application, the Standard Agreement, and any subsequent amendments or modifications thereto, as well as any other documents required by HCD for participation in the CalHOME Program, and any amendments thereto; and
- 6. Authorizes the Mayor of the City of Rio Dell to execute the Letter of Designation designating City Manager or designee as the City's designee for this application and to act on the City's behalf in all matters pertaining to this application; and
- 7. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to work with the Humboldt County Director of the Planning and Building Department to initiate the appeal process in accordance with Section V of the CalHOME NOFA if HCD determines and notifies the City/County that the application does not meet the criteria; and

PASSED and ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on February 27, 2023 by the following vote:

AYES:		
NOES:	*	
ABSENT:		
ABSTAIN:		
	Mayor Debra Garnes	

STATE OF CALIFORNIA City of Rio Dell

ATTEST:

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 1575-2023 adopted by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on February 27, 2023.

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

2020 W. El Camino Avenue, Suite 670, 95833 P. O. Box 952054 Sacramento, CA 94252-2054 (916) 263-2771 www.hcd.ca.gov



January 6, 2023

MEMORANDUM FOR:

ALL POTENTIAL APPLICANTS

FROM:

Jennifer Seeger, Deputy Director

Division of State Financial Assistance

SUBJECT:

2023 Homeownership Super Notice of Funding

Availability (Super NOFA)

The California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD or Department) is pleased to announce the release of this Homeownership Super Notice of Funding Availability (HOSN or Super NOFA) for approximately \$170 million in funds for the following programs:

- CalHome Program (\$135 million)
- Joe Serna, Jr. Farmworker Housing Grant Program Homeownership (\$35 million)

This funding provides loans and grants to Local Public Entities and Nonprofits for Homeownership Development Projects, Self-Help Technical Assistance Projects, Mortgage Assistance Programs, Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Programs, Shared Housing Programs and Programs for the Acquisition of Manufactured Housing for Agricultural Households.

Per California Assembly Bill No. 434 (AB 434) (Chapter 192, Statutes of 2020), HCD is required to do the following for the Homeownership elements of the Joe Serna, Jr. Farmworker Housing Grant Program: (1) make the program funds available at the same time it makes funds, if any, available under the CalHome Program; (2) rate and rank the applications in a manner consistent with the CalHome Program except that the department may establish additional point categories for the purposes of rating and ranking applications that seek funding under Serna in addition to those used in the CalHome Program; and (3) administer the funds in a manner consistent with the CalHome Program.

Applications for this funding must be submitted electronically via the application portal no later than 4:00 P.M. Pacific Standard Time on Tuesday, February 28th. The portal link, and requirements for submitting the Super NOFA application and required supporting documentation, including naming conventions, can be found on the Department's Homeownership Super NOFA website, https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/homeownership-super-nofa.

The online workshop details and final Guidelines are posted on the Department's website at Homeownership Super NOFA I California Department of Housing and Community Development. To receive information regarding online workshops and other updates, please subscribe to our Homeownership listserv at https://www.hcd.ca.gov/email-signup. If you have further questions, please contact HOSN@hcd.ca.gov.

2023 Homeownership Super Notice of Funding Availability (Super NOFA)

CalHome Program

Joe Serna, Jr. Farmworker Housing Grant Program – Homeownership



Gavin Newsom, Governor State of California

Lourdes Castro Ramírez, Secretary
Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency

Gustavo Velasquez, Director
Department of Housing and Community Development

2020 West El Camino Avenue, Suite 500, Sacramento, CA 95833

Telephone: (916) 263-2771

Website: http://www.hcd.ca.gov/

Homeownership Super NOFA Email: HOSN@hcd.ca.gov

January 6, 2023

Table of Contents

I.	Overview	1
a.	Notice of Funding Availability	1
b.	. Timeline	3
c.	Authorizing Legislation and Regulations (Regulatory Authority)	3
II.	Program Requirements	
a.	Eligible Sponsor/Applicant	4
b.	Eligible Uses	5
c.		
d.		
e.		
f.	Funding Limits	
g.	Threshold	
h.	Rating and Ranking	16
i.	Negative Points and Disencumbrance Policies	
ш	Application Submission and Review Procedures	10
a.	Application Submission Process	
b.		
c.	Disclosure of Application	
11/ 1		
IV. I	Base Evaluation Criteria	19
۷. /	Appeals	24
a.	Basis of Appeals	24
b.	Appeal Process and Deadlines	25
c.	Decision	25
VI. /	Award Announcements and Contracts	25
a.	Award Announcements	
b.	Contracts	
/11		
VII.	Other State Requirements	26
VIII.	Other Terms and Conditions	26
a.	Right to Modify or Suspend	26
b.	Conflicts	26

Overview

a. Notice of Funding Availability

The California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD or Department) is pleased to announce the release of this Homeownership Super Notice of Funding Availability (HOSN or Super NOFA) for approximately \$170 million, which may be augmented based on the availability of funds.

The Super NOFA is issued to distribute funds through a combination of HCD-administered homeownership programs. These programs are:

- CalHome Program (CalHome) supports Homeownership programs aimed at lower and very low-income households, and in the case of a disaster, households at or below moderate income, and operated by private nonprofit and local government agencies, to increase homeownership, encourage neighborhood revitalization and sustainable development, and maximize use of existing homes.
- Joe Serna, Jr. Farmworker Housing Grant Program (FWHG or Serna)
 supports development projects involving multiple home ownership units,
 including single-family subdivisions, for lower-income agricultural employees and
 their families, and programs that assist lower-income agricultural employees and
 their families to become or remain homeowners.

This Homeownership Super NOFA announces funding availability for two programs that in the past would have been announced separately. Consistent with the purposes of AB 434, defined below, funding for these two programs is being made available at the same time, and both programs are being administered consistent with CalHome.

The Homeownership Super NOFA distributes funds for the CalHome Program and funds limited to the Homeownership activities of Serna. Please note that new construction or rehabilitation (with or without acquisition) of a rental housing development, including under Serna, is <u>not</u> an eligible activity under this Super NOFA. Multifamily and single-family rental housing projects should submit applications under the Department's Multifamily Finance Super NOFA.

The information provided in this Super NOFA is intended to be a summary and is not considered a complete representation of the entirety of the eligibility, threshold, and other requirements or terms and conditions of the CalHome Program and Serna Program. Applicants should familiarize themselves with all applicable Statutes and Guidelines which, in the event of any conflict(s) with this Super NOFA, shall control.

This Super NOFA, the CalHome Final Guidelines (2022), and the Serna-Homeownership Final Guidelines (2022) implement the requirements of California Assembly Bill 434 (AB 434) (Chapter 192, Statutes of 2020). For the Homeownership activities of Serna, AB 434 requires the Department to:

- Make those funds available at the same time it makes funds, if any, available under the CalHome Program,
- Rate and rank applications in a manner consistent with the CalHome Program, except that the department may establish additional point categories for the purposes of rating and ranking applications that seek funding under Serna in addition to those used in the CalHome Program, and
- Administer those funds in a manner consistent with the CalHome Program.

The Department is making approximately \$170 million available as follows:

Funding Programs	Topia S. 248 Separation declared in the
CalHOME Program	\$135 million
Joe Serna, Jr. Farmworker Housing Grant (Serna) Program	\$35 million

Funding for this Super NOFA is provided by a combination of funding sources as outlined below:

- General Fund (as appropriated in the 2022 Budget Act): Provides \$135 million for CalHome and \$20 million for Serna.
- Building Homes and Jobs Act (Senate Bill 2): Provides \$15 million for Serna.

Approximately \$135 million will be available to fund Local Public Agencies, Nonprofit Corporations, and Tribal Entities, for the following activities within the CalHome program:

- Homeownership Development Project Loans (including Predevelopment Costs and carrying costs during construction related to ADUs and JADUs)
- Technical Assistance for Self-Help Housing Projects
- First-Time Homebuyer Mortgage Assistance (including the purchase of a home with an Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) or Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit (JADU))
- Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Assistance (including Rehabilitation of Manufactured Housing not on a permanent foundation, and construction, repair, or Rehabilitation of ADUs or JADUs)
- Technical Assistance for Shared Housing Programs
- ADU/JADU Assistance (including construction, repair, or Rehabilitation of ADUs or JADUs)

Approximately \$35 million will be available for the following Homeownership activities within the Serna program to address the housing needs of agricultural workers:

- Homeownership Development Projects involving multiple home ownership units, including single-family subdivisions, for lower-income agricultural employees and their families
- Technical Assistance for Self-Help Housing Projects
- First-Time Homebuyer Mortgage Assistance
- Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Assistance
- Acquisition of Manufactured Housing as part of a program to address and remedy the impacts of current and potential displacement of farmworker families from existing labor camps, mobilehome parks, or other housing

Funding targets are described in Section II.E. of this Super NOFA.

b. Timeline

Super NOFA Release	January 6, 2023
Application Portal Available on Website	January 20, 2023
Application Due Date	February 28, 2023 4:00 PM
Tribal Application Due Date	March 30, 2023 4:00pm
Award Announcement	June 2023

c. Authorizing Legislation and Regulations (Regulatory Authority)

Applications submitted under this Super NOFA are subject to the applicable Program Guidelines, all applicable statutory requirements, and this Super NOFA. Section references in this Super NOFA refer to applicable Program Guidelines unless otherwise noted. Capitalized terms in this Super NOFA are either defined herein or in Appendix A of the applicable Guidelines.

The administration of the CalHome and Serna Programs are governed by the applicable Program Guidelines that implement, interpret, or make specific the following laws:

- The CalHome program was established by Chapter 6, commencing with § 50650) of Part 2 of Division 31 of the California Health & Safety Code (HSC).
- The Serna program was established by Chapter 3.2 (commencing with § 50515.2) of Part 2 of Division 31 of the HSC. The Serna Guidelines referenced in this Super NOFA apply only to the Homeownership elements of Serna. Rental housing Development activities are governed under a separate set of Program Guidelines available at https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/supernofa.

Department of Housing and Community Development Homeownership Super NOFA, Round 1

- Chapter 364, (commencing with §50470) of Part 2 of Division 31, HSC, 2017 (SB2).
- Chapter 365, (commencing with §5400) of Part 16 of Division 31, HSC, 2017 (SB 3), which was adopted by voters on November 6, 2018, as Proposition 1, provided funding for the CalHome and Serna Programs and authorized the Department to administer the Programs through the Guidelines. These Guidelines were explicitly exempt from the requirements of the Administrative Procedures Act (Chapter 3.5 (commencing with § 11340) of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 of the California Government Code).

This Super NOFA will be governed by the December 30, 2022 CalHome Program Final Guidelines (2022) and the December 30, 2022 Serna Homeownership Program Final Guidelines (2022). Applications must be completed pursuant to the applicable Guideline requirements.

II. <u>Program Requirements</u>

The following is provided as a summary only. Applicants should refer to the CalHOME and Serna program Guidelines, as applicable, for a comprehensive discussion of the requirements that are relevant to their proposed Projects. A Project is not eligible for an award unless it meets all the threshold requirements of the applicable program. Please review the individual Program Guidelines of each Program for complete information. Further, Sponsors/Applicants must achieve a minimum point score of 55 points in Base Scoring Criteria to be considered for a funding award.

a. Eligible Sponsor/Applicant

An Applicant is the entity or entities applying to the Department for the Program funding. Such entity or entities may also be the Sponsor. If receiving an Award of funds, the Applicant or co-Applicants will, both individually and collectively, be referred to as the "Recipient" in the Department's legal documents relative to an Award of a grant, or as "Sponsor" in the Department's legal documents relative to an Award of a Loan.

A Sponsor shall be any individual, joint venture, partnership, limited liability company, limited partnership (including a limited partnership in which the Sponsor or an affiliate is a general partner), trust, corporation, cooperative, Local Public Entity, Tribal Entity, other legal entity, or any combination thereof which meets the requirements of the following sections of the relevant Program Guidelines:

CalHome

§200 Eligible Applicants

§400.1 Eligible Applicant (Homeownership Development Project Loan)

§401.1 Eligible Applicant (Self-Help Technical Assistance Grant Program)

§402.1 Eligible Applicant (Mortgage Assistance Grant Program)

§403.1 Eligible Applicant (Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Grant Program)

§404.1 Eligible Applicant (Shared Housing Program)

§405.1 Eligible Applicant (ADU/JADU Program)

Serna

§200 Eligible Applicant

§400.1 Eligible Applicant (Homeownership Development Project Loan)

§401.1 Eligible Applicant (Self-Help Technical Assistance Grant Program)

§402.1 Eligible Applicant (Mortgage Assistance Grant Program)

§403.1 Eligible Applicant (Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Grant Program)

§404.1 Eligible Applicant (Acquisition of Manufactured Housing Grant Program)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, and solely for the purpose of applying to the Community-Based Developer funding target for a Homeownership Development Project Loan and/or a Self-Help Technical Assistance Grant, a Community-Based Developer shall qualify on its own as a Sponsor so long as the Community-Based Developer meets the requirements set forth in the Defined Terms Appendix A of the Multifamily Housing Program Final Guidelines dated March 30, 2022, Amended May 5, 2022, which is incorporated hereto by this reference.

Please note, Applicants that were previously awarded CalHome funds must submit all outstanding reports from the past two years to the Department by the application date. Failure to submit the reports by the application date will result in the Applicant being ineligible for a CalHome award under this Super NOFA (CalHome Final Guidelines (2022) §200(c)(1)). Applicants may email: CalHomeReports@hcd.ca.gov to obtain status on previous reports.

b. Eligible Uses

The Department is making CalHome and Serna funds available for the following activities:

 Homeownership Development Project Loans (Guidelines §400) for conditional awards of development Loans to the Applicants to be used as specified in §400.2 of the Guidelines.

Homeownership Development Projects must have a minimum of five units.

The estimated sales price of the homes to be constructed shall not exceed the current local median sales price of a single-family home. Recipients may use the most recent median sales price, by county, posted at the California Association of Realtors website at https://www.car.org/en/marketdata/data/countysalesactivity. However, if prices have significantly changed, Recipients may request

Department approval to use different limits based on a local calculation of median values.

Note: Proposed projects are ineligible to receive funds if construction work has begun or will begin prior to the date the Department executes the Standard Agreement with the Recipient and all conditions have been satisfied. Construction work includes grading, site preparation (with the exception of demolition or clearing properties), or site improvements intended for public dedication (Guidelines §201).

2. Technical Assistance for Self-Help Housing Projects (Guidelines §401) in which the Applicant organization will be providing the services required in Guidelines §401.3.

Homebuyer Education (Guidelines §401.2(b)) will be reimbursed in the form of a Grant from the Department to the Recipient in an amount not to exceed \$250 per assisted unit.

3. First-Time Homebuyer Mortgage Assistance (including the purchase of homes with ADUs or JADUs) (commencing with Guidelines §402) for Loans to Households at or below 80 percent of Area Median Income (AMI).

Homebuyer Education (Guidelines §402.2) will be reimbursed in the form of a Grant from the Department to the Recipient in an amount not to exceed \$250 per assisted unit.

Maximum appraised home values at time of purchase or upon completion of acquisition/Rehabilitation work shall not exceed the most recent median sales price, by county, posted at the California Association of Realtors website at https://www.car.org/en/marketdata/data/countysalesactivity. However, if prices have significantly changed, Recipients may request Department approval to use different limits based on a local calculation of median values.

Financial assistance provided to qualified individual homeowners for Mortgage Assistance shall be in the form of deferred payment Loans, repayable upon the sale or transfer of the homes, when the home ceases to be owner-occupied, or upon the Loan maturity date, whichever occurs first (HSC § 50650.3 (c)(1)). The Loan shall be up to a 30-year term with the following exception: when USDA, Rural Housing Service (RHS) 502 Mortgage Loans are in first lien position the term shall be the term of the 502 Mortgage (30-38 years) (Guidelines §301). The interest rate is set by the Recipient at up to 3 percent simple interest per annum (Guidelines §301(d)). Borrowers shall occupy units as their principal place of residence for the term of the Loan (Guidelines §203(d)). If the Borrower will occupy an ADU or JADU, then residents of the single-family residence shall not be considered as part of the Household receiving program funding (Guidelines §203). Recipients shall comply with the Homeowner/Homebuyer Loan-to-Value Limits for Mortgage Assistance program Loans defined in Guidelines §302.

4. Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Assistance (including repair, full reconstruction, or the addition of an ADU or JADU) (Guidelines §403) for Loans to Households at or below 80 percent of AMI.

All assisted units shall have After-Rehabilitation Values at or below the current local median sales price of a single-family home. Recipients may use the most recent median sales price, by county, posted at the California Association of Realtors website at https://www.car.org/en/marketdata/data/countysalesactivity. However, if there is a significant price discrepancy, Recipients may request Department approval to use different limits based on a local calculation of median values.

Manufactured Housing is also eligible, including replacement of a manufactured home not on a permanent foundation in the case where it has been determined by the Recipient it is infeasible to rehabilitate the home, whether located in a Mobilehome Park or elsewhere (Guidelines §403.2).

Financial assistance provided to qualified individual homeowners for Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation shall be in the form of deferred payment Loans, repayable upon the sale or transfer of the homes, when the home ceases to be owner-occupied, or upon the Loan maturity date, whichever occurs first (HSC §50650.3(c)(1)). The Loan shall be up to a 30-year term (Guidelines §301). The interest rate is set by the Recipient up to 3 percent simple interest per annum (Guidelines §301). Borrowers must occupy units as their principal place of residence for the term of the Loan (Guidelines §203). If the Borrower will occupy an ADU or JADU, then residents of the single family residence shall not be considered as part of the Household receiving funding (Guidelines §203).

Recipients shall comply with the Homeowner/Homebuyer loan-to-value limits for Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation program Loans defined in Guidelines §302.

Financial assistance provided to individual Households to rehabilitate, repair, or replace Manufactured Housing located in a Mobilehome Park and not permanently affixed to a foundation shall be in the form of a secured forgivable Loan, which shall also be made in a manner consistent with the Guidelines and applicable Statutes (HSC §50650.3(c) and Guidelines §403.2). The Loan shall be due and payable in 20 years, with 10 percent of the original principal to be forgiven annually for each additional year beyond the 10th year that the home is owned and continuously occupied by the Borrower (HSC §50650.3 (c)). Pursuant to HSC §50650.3(c), not more than 10 percent of the funds available in a given fiscal year shall be used for financial assistance in the form of secured forgivable Loans.

- 5. The Department is also making CalHome funds available for the following additional activities:
 - Technical Assistance for Shared Housing Programs (Guidelines §404) to operators of Shared Housing Programs that will directly provide match

- services where the providers are homeowners who occupy their homes as their principal place of residence.
- ADU/JADU Programs (Guidelines §405) for Loans for ADU/JADU construction, reconstruction, repair, or Rehabilitation to Households at or below 80 percent of AMI (in compliance with HSC §50052.5(b)).

Funds in support of an ADU/JADU Program shall be used for:

- Construction, reconstruction, repair, conversion, or Rehabilitation
- Structural modifications to the existing home necessary to accommodate an ADU or a JADU
- Building permits and other related government fees, including all fees necessary to build and occupy the ADU/JADU
- Consulting services which are directly related to construction, such as appraisal, architectural, or engineering services
- Non-recurring Loan costs
- CalHome Activity Delivery Fees
- **6.** The Department is also making Serna funds available for the following activity, as set forth in Guidelines §404:
 - **A.** Acquisition Of Manufactured Housing as part of a local Program to address and remedy the impacts of current and potential displacement of low-income farmworker families from existing labor camps, Mobilehome Parks, or other housing.

All manufactured homes acquired through the Program must be owner occupied by a low-income Agricultural Worker Household (Guidelines§ 404.4(a)).

Financial assistance provided to individual Households for Manufactured Housing located in a Mobilehome Park and not permanently affixed to a foundation shall be in the form of a secured forgivable Loan. The Loan shall be due and payable in 20 years, with 10 percent of the original principal to be forgiven annually for each additional year beyond the 10th year that the home is owned and continuously occupied by the Borrower.

c. Program Funding Amounts and Terms

1. Minimum and Maximum Application Amounts.

The minimum application amount for any single project or program (except if the project or program is Technical Assistance for Self-Help Housing Projects or CalHome Technical Assistance for Shared Housing Programs) is \$500,000.

The minimum application amount for any single project or program (if the project/program is Technical Assistance for Self-Help Housing Projects or

CalHome Technical Assistance for Shared Housing Programs) is \$100,000. If applying for more than one activity, the minimum application amount for those activities is \$600,000.

The maximum application amount for a project (a Homeownership Development Project Loan with or without Technical Assistance for Self-Help Housing Projects) is \$10 million.

The maximum application amount for one or more programs is \$5 million. If applying only for Technical Assistance for Self-Help Housing Projects, the maximum application amount is \$500,000. If applying only for CalHome Technical Assistance for Shared Housing Programs, the maximum application amount is \$300,000.

2. Minimum and maximum per-unit funding limits

A. CalHome and Serna Grant Activities

For the purposes of this Super NOFA, the minimum and maximum amount of funding to individual Borrowers will be:

i. Mortgage Assistance, including for Mortgage Assistance provided as a part of a Homeownership Development Project Loan

The maximum Loan amount by an award recipient to an eligible Borrower will be 40 percent of the Borrower's purchase price for the property, up to a maximum of \$200,000. The minimum Loan to a Borrower will be not less than \$1,000.

ii. Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Assistance

The maximum Loan amount by an award recipient to an eligible Borrower will be \$200,000 unless the home is in need of reconstruction. If the home is in need of reconstruction, the maximum Loan amount will be \$250,000. The maximum Loan amount for addition or full reconstruction of an ADU will be \$250,000. The maximum Loan amount for replacement of a manufactured home not on a permanent foundation in the case where it has been determined by the Recipient it is infeasible to rehabilitate the home will be \$150,000. The minimum Loan to a Borrower will be not less than \$1,000.

iii. CalHome ADU/JADU Assistance

The maximum Loan amount by an award recipient to an eligible Borrower for ADU/JADU construction will be \$250,000. The minimum Loan to a Borrower will be not less than \$1,000.

iv. Serna Acquisition of Manufactured Housing

The maximum Loan or Grant amount by an award recipient to an eligible Agricultural Worker Household will be 100 percent of the purchase price for the manufactured home, up to a maximum of \$150,000. The minimum Loan or Grant will be not less than \$1,000.

B. CalHome and Serna Loan Activities

i. Homeownership Project Development

The maximum per-unit Loan amount for Homeownership Development Project Loans will be \$250,000.

If an Applicant is applying to fund a Homeownership Development Project with a Self-Help Housing Project, the Applicant may additionally apply for Technical Assistance of \$20,000 per-unit on top of the application amount requested for a Homeownership Development Project.

C. Funding limits for Technical Assistance

The minimum Technical Assistance Grant to a Recipient will be not less than \$1,000. For the purposes of this Super NOFA, the maximum Grant per-unit will be:

CalHome and Serna Technical Assistance for Self-Help Housing Projects

The maximum per-unit Grant amount will be \$20,000. All expenses shall be documented.

CalHome Technical Assistance for Shared Housing Programs

The maximum activity amount for Shared Housing Programs is established in § (C)(1) of this NOFA.

D. Activity Delivery Fees (ADFs)

For CalHome and Serna Mortgage Assistance Programs, the Department may provide funding to cover ADFs of up to 10 percent of the total award. Up to 5 percent of the total award may be provided within 90 days after the execution of the Standard Agreement for program development and program management expenses incurred after the execution of the Standard Agreement, and up to 5 percent of the total award may be reimbursed on a per-Loan basis. The per-Loan reimbursement maximum will be 5 percent of the total award divided by the estimated number of Loans to be made under the contract.

For CalHome and Serna Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Programs, Serna Acquisition of Manufactured Housing Grant Programs, and CalHome ADU/JADU Programs, the Department may provide funding to cover ADFs of up to 20 percent of the total award. Up to 10 percent of the total award may be provided within 90 days after the execution of the Standard Agreement for program development and program management expenses incurred after the execution of the Standard Agreement, and up to 10 percent of the total award may be reimbursed on a per-Loan basis. The per-Loan reimbursement maximum will be 10 percent of the total award divided by the estimated number of Loans to be made under the contract.

Applicants need to provide documentation verifying their Activity Delivery expenses. This requirement may be satisfied through documents such as invoices, receipts, time tracking, or other documentation of valid program expenses.

d. Site Control

For Homeownership Development Project Loans, Recipients shall comply with the Site Control requirements listed in 400.3.

e. Funding Targets, Geographic Distribution of Funds, and Discretionary Funds

- 1. To the extent there are eligible applications, the Department shall target \$30 million of the available \$135 million in CalHome funds as awards for Mobilehome assistance in a Mobilehome or manufactured home community. To the extent there is insufficient demand of eligible applications to make \$30 million in awards, any remaining funds will be applied to the general pool of applicants.
- 2. To the extent there are eligible applications, the Department shall target 10 percent of Super NOFA funds (i.e., \$17 million), to Tribal Entities. This shall include 10 percent of the total CalHome funds available under the Super NOFA (i.e., \$13.5 million) and 10 percent of the total Serna funds available under the Super NOFA (i.e., \$3.5 million).
- 3. To the extent that there are eligible applications, the Department shall target 15 percent of Super NOFA funds (i.e., \$25.5 million) to Community-Based Developers applying for a Homeownership Project Development Loan and/or a Self-Help Technical Assistance Grant. This shall include 15 percent of the total CalHome funds available under the Super NOFA (i.e., \$20.25 million) and 15 percent of the total Serna funds available under the Super NOFA (i.e., \$5.25 million). If Serna funds are awarded to a Homeownership Project Development Loan for a Community Based Developer in excess of the \$5.25 million available under this target, any funds over \$5.25 million will come from the general Serna pot and not count against the CalHOME Community Based Developer target.

Community-Based Developers may only compete in the funding target for this Super NOFA if they meet BOTH of the following: 1) maintain their corporate headquarters within 10 miles of the proposed project site or have three (3) deed-restricted affordable housing projects within 10 miles of the proposed project site; AND 2) directly provide at least two community benefit programs accessible to the general public within 10 miles of the proposed project as detailed below:

Community benefit programs may include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Free or reduced-cost childcare, after-school care, youth development, or adult day care programs.
- Community center facilities that are staffed and open to the public at least once a week or a minimum of 7 hours each week.
- Medical clinic with a physician, physician's assistant, or nurse practitioner onsite for a minimum of 40 hours each week.
- Small business technical assistance, lending, or investment to at least ten neighborhood businesses within five miles of the proposed Project.
- Job training, digital literacy training, college outreach (linking potential students to college resources and information), financial counseling, housing counseling, free tax return, or other economic empowerment programs.
- Food distribution programs.

All community benefit programs must be provided directly by the Community-Based Developer applicant. Such programs must be open and accessible to the general public, as described in the application. The applicant must demonstrate that the services are generally accessible during core hours/times. For example, an applicant could demonstrate that food distribution services are available based on a set schedule of days and hours. Please note that some services may greater hours, e.g., medical clinic, or job training services, to be responsive to community needs.

For Applicants applying as Community-Based Developers, the entity must demonstrate in their application that they have community knowledge, commitment to long-term community investment, and population-specific cultural competency, through a combination of the following:

- Receipt of grant funds for services within the relevant neighborhood or community.
- Cultural and linguistic competency on staff relevant to community members (must be utilized daily in the provision of services and community benefit programs).

- A record of hiring from the community (within a ten-mile range of the Community-Based Developer's central office).
- Membership in or recruitment from a local Urban League (or substantially equivalent) organization.

The sufficiency of the foregoing demonstration shall be evaluated in the reasonable discretion of the Department. The entity shall be allowed to define their served community within reason, for example by specifying a neighborhood geography of a specific number of square miles within the location of their central office, which area should include the proposed project.

Capability points (maximum 40 points) will not be considered in the ranking of the Community-Based Developer funding target; however, the capability point category will be applicable if an application is unsuccessful in the Community-Based Developer funding target and is then ranked with the remaining unfunded applications.

4. The Super NOFA shall have geographic targets of up to 46 percent of available funds for Southern California, up to 24 percent for Northern California, and up to 20 percent for rural jurisdictions. Ten percent shall not be subject to a specific geographic distribution. In its sole discretion, HCD may determine the geographic distribution targets have been met based either on individual Program funding components or on the amount of total funds awarded under this NOFA.

For the purpose of geographic distribution:

- Targets are based on the percent of Low-Income renters in California, based on the HUD-released data from American Community Survey (ACS) for the 2015-2019 period.
- 2. "Rural" is defined to be consistent with the definition used by the TCAC for the tax credit program. A list of Rural areas, as well as the methodology to determine Rural or non-rural status, can be found on TCAC's website or by clicking this link: https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/ctcac/2022/rural-status.pdf.

Northern	Non-rural areas of the following counties: Alameda, Butte, Contra Costa, El Dorado, Fresno, Kings, Madera, Marin, Merced, Monterey, Napa, Placer, Sacramento, San			
	Benito, San Francisco, San Joaquin, San Mateo, Santa Clara, Santa Cruz, Shasta, Solano, Sonoma, Stanislaus, Sutter, Tulare, Yolo, Yuba			
Non-rural areas of the following counties: Imperial, Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, S Diego, San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara, Ventura				

Further, Sponsors/Applicants must achieve a <u>minimum point score of 55 points</u> in the Base Evaluation Criteria in Section IV of this Super NOFA to be considered for a funding award.

1. CalHOME and Serna Guidelines Section §208 Threshold Requirements

The following are highlights of CalHOME and Serna threshold requirements:

- A. A Locality shall only be eligible to apply for an award of program funds for a Local Program or project located within its jurisdictional boundaries. A Locality may hire nonprofit and for-profit consultants located and/or registered within or outside its jurisdictional boundaries, including other counties within the state. Out-of-county consultants are obliged to fulfill the same experience requirements as the in-county entities. Localities may establish a consortium (provided there is a Memorandum of Understanding between the parties) with a single administrator. One Locality shall apply on behalf of other entities in a consortium and may serve all jurisdictions.
- B. A Nonprofit Corporation shall only be eligible to apply for an award of program funds for a program or project if it has developed a project or operated a housing program in California within the past two years or if the Nonprofit Corporation has an existing 523 Self-Help Technical Assistance Grant Agreement with United States Department of Agriculture (USDA).

2. <u>Serna Guidelines §208: Threshold Requirements</u>

All Serna threshold requirements shall be satisfied. The following are highlights of Serna threshold requirements:

- **A.** All Units assisted with program funds must serve Lower-Income Agricultural Households.
- 3. CalHome and Serna requirements are subject to AB 1010 (Chapter 660, Statutes of 2019), which is set forth in HSC §50406(p). Accordingly, and pursuant to HSC §50406(p): (1) where the provisions of tribal law, tribal governance, tribal charter, or difference in Tribal Entity or legal structure would cause a violation or not satisfy the requirements of the CalHome or Serna Guidelines, said requirements may be modified as necessary to ensure Program compatibility; and (2) where provisions of tribal law, tribal governance, tribal charter, or difference in tribal entity legal structure or agency create minor inconsistencies (as determined by the Director of the Department or a duly authorized designee thereof) with the requirements set forth in the Guidelines the Department may waive said requirements, as deemed necessary, to avoid an unnecessary administrative burden. Matters set forth or otherwise provided for in the Guidelines that may be modified or waived include, without limitation, threshold scoring requirements and any other matters set forth in HSC §50406(p)(2). Tribal Applicants are accordingly encouraged to discuss any such potential modifications or waivers and their

options in that regard during any pre-application technical assistance communications or meetings.

h. Rating and Ranking

All applications will be evaluated on the Base Evaluation Criteria included in Section IV of this Super NOFA. Applications for Serna funding will also be scored on the Additional Serna Criteria included in Section IV.

CalHome and Serna applications will be ranked separately since the additional evaluation criteria used for Serna applications means those applications have a higher possible maximum score.

All applications meeting the threshold requirements of the applicable Program and achieving a minimum point score of 55 points in Base Evaluation Criteria will be considered for funding pursuant to the process described below.

Funding targets will be applied in the following order: 1) Tribal Entities, 2) Community-Based Developers, 3) Mobilehome assistance in a Mobilehome or manufactured home community and finally 4) geographic. All applications awarded under the Tribal or Mobilehome assistance in a Mobilehome or manufactured home community will also count towards meeting the applicable regional targets. If a concentration of awards in any geographic area would make it impossible for the Department to meet the geographic funding targets established in this Super NOFA, the Department may skip to lower-scoring applications in other geographic areas.

Applications that include some activities that are eligible for a funding target and some that are not eligible for a funding target, or include activities in multiple geographic regions, will be separated out into multiple applications for the purposes of rating and ranking. For example, if an Applicant applies for \$1 million for Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation funds targeted to Mobilehome assistance in a Mobilehome or manufactured home community and \$2 million for Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation funds not targeted to Mobilehome assistance in a Mobilehome or manufactured home community, the \$1 million request will be scored separately from the \$2 million request and only the \$1 million request will be considered in the Mobilehome assistance in a Mobilehome or manufactured home community funding target. Similarly, if an Applicant applies for \$500,000 in Mortgage Assistance program funds to be used in rural areas and \$2.5 million in Mortgage Assistance program funds to be used in non-rural areas in Southern California, the \$500,000 request will be scored separately from the \$2.5 million request. As such, it is possible that only the part of a given application that is eligible as part of a funding target or is in an undersubscribed geographic area will be awarded funds if the remainder of the application does not score high enough in the general ranking.

Funding targets will only be awarded to the extent that eligible applications (those meeting all threshold requirements including minimum point score) exist. If the Department receives fewer eligible applications than funding available, any

unawarded funds within the funding targets may be used to fund remaining eligible applications based on ranked score.

- 1. CalHome funding targets for Tribal Entities, Community-Based Developers, and Mobilehome assistance in a Mobilehome or manufactured home community: Beginning with the top-ranked CalHome applications (according to the Base Evaluation Criteria including tiebreakers as applicable) eligible for the funding target, the highest scoring applications will be "fully funded" (provided all applicable threshold, minimum point score, and other eligibility criteria are met). "Fully funded" means these applications will receive an award of all requested Program funds, subject to applicable limits. Applicable limits that could result in Department awards below requested levels include but are not limited to: maximum allowable funding limits (per unit, per project and per applicant) and available funding in the 2023 Homeownership Super NOFA. Applicants that are eligible can compete in multiple funding targets, if unsuccessful in one due to oversubscription. CalHome applications funded through the Tribal, Community-Based Developer and Mobilehome assistance in a Mobilehome or manufactured home community funding target are accounted for in the geographic percentage targets.
- 2. Serna funding target for Tribal Entities and Community-Based Developers: Beginning with the top-ranked Serna applications (according to the Base Evaluation Criteria including tiebreakers as applicable) eligible for the Tribal Entities funding target, the highest scoring applications will be "fully funded" (provided all applicable threshold, minimum point score, and other eligibility criteria are met). "Fully funded" means these applications will receive an award of all requested Program funds, subject to applicable limits. Applicable limits that could result in Department awards below requested levels include but are not limited to: maximum allowable funding limits (per unit, per project and per applicant) and available funding in the 2023 Homeownership Super NOFA. Serna applications funded through the Tribal or Community-Based Developer funding target are accounted for in the geographic percentage targets.
- 3. Once all funding targets are met to the extent possible, the highest-ranking remaining Serna applications will be fully funded until Serna funds are exhausted. However, if a concentration of Serna awards in any geographic area would make it impossible for the Department to meet the geographic funding targets established in this Super NOFA, the Department may skip to lower-scoring Serna applications in other geographic areas.
- 4. If the last-ranked Serna application requests more Serna funds than remain, that Project will, conditioned upon the availability of additional funding, receive an augmentation of Serna funds and be fully funded.
- 5. Finally, the highest-ranking CalHome applications will be fully funded until CalHome funds are exhausted. However, if a concentration of CalHome awards in any geographic area would make it impossible for the Department to meet the

- geographic funding targets established in this Super NOFA, the Department may skip to lower-scoring CalHome applications in other geographic areas.
- 6. If the last-ranked CalHome application requests more CalHome funds than remain, that Project will, conditioned upon the availability of additional funding, receive an augmentation of CalHome funds and be fully funded.

i. Negative Points and Disencumbrance Policies

The Department's Negative Points Policy (Administrative Notice Number 2022-01), (https://www.hcd.ca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-04/Negative-Points-Policy-FINAL-33022 ADA.pdf) dated March 30, 2022 and published on the Department's website, is hereby incorporated by this reference to this Super NOFA as if set forth in full herein, and shall apply with equal force as all other provisions set forth herein. If the Applicant is subject to a negative points assessment based on the criteria outlined in the Department's Negative Points Policy or is determined to be ineligible for funding, the Department shall notify the Applicant in writing in the initial point score letter.

Funds awarded under this Super NOFA may be disencumbered by the Department as set forth in §603 of the Guidelines.

III. Application Submission and Review Procedures

a. Application Submission Process

Application materials must be submitted electronically via the application portal. The portal link, and requirements for submitting the Super NOFA application and required supporting documentation, including naming conventions, can be found on the Department's Homeownership Super NOFA website, https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/homeownership-super-nofa. The application instructions and submittal portal will be available beginning January 20, 2023.

Applicants must upload and submit all application materials to the application portal no later than 4:00 p.m. Pacific Time on February 28, 2023. Tribal applicants must upload and submit all application materials to the application portal no later than 4:00 p.m. Pacific Time on March 30, 2023. Applications that do not meet the filing deadline will not be eligible for funding.

Applications must be on HCD's forms and cannot be altered or modified by the Applicant. It is the Applicant's responsibility to ensure the application is clear, complete, and accurate. Excel forms must be submitted in Excel format, not a PDF document.

b. Application Workshops

The Department will conduct two recorded webinar application workshops for the Homeownership Super NOFA. Please go to the Homeownership Super NOFA website (https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/homeownership-super-nofa) for the dates and locations and to register.

c. Disclosure of Application

Information provided in the application will become a public record available for review by the public, pursuant to the California Public Records Act (Chapter 1473, Statutes of 1968). As such, any materials provided will be disclosable to any person making a request under this Act. The Department cautions applicants to use discretion in providing information not specifically requested, including but not limited to, bank account numbers, personal phone numbers and home addresses. By providing this information to the Department, the applicant is waiving any claim of confidentiality and consents to the disclosure of submitted material upon request.

IV. Base Evaluation Criteria

a. Each CalHome and Serna application considered for funding shall be rated using the following criteria and maximum possible rating points:

	Maximum Points	
ar Pr pr		
Nı ye		
•	40	
•	For Technical Assistance for Self-Help Housing Projects: 2 - 10 units ~ 20 points 11 - 20 units ~ 30 points 21 or more units ~ 40 points	

- For CalHome Technical Assistance for Shared Housing Programs:
 - 2 units ~ 20 points
 - 3 4 units ~ *30 points*
 - 5 or more units ~ 40 points
- For Homeownership Development Project Loans:
 - 2 projects ~ 20 points
 - 3 4 projects ~ *30 points*
 - 5 or more projects ~ 40 points

Community Need in a geographic area for the proposed Local Program or project will be based on the following factors:

For Mortgage Assistance Programs, Technical Assistance for Self-Help Housing Projects, CalHome Technical Assistance for Shared Housing Programs, CalHome ADU/JADU Programs, Serna Acquisition of Manufactured Housing Programs, and Homeownership Development Project Loans:

- Housing affordability in the geographic area: The ratio of the current median sales price of a single-family home to the AMI for a 4-person Household in the county in which the program or project is located. The current median sales price is the most recent available from the California Association of Realtors as of the NOFA date, and the AMI is updated on an annual basis by the Department;
- Percent of renter Households that are low income: The percent of Households in renter-occupied housing with incomes below 80 percent of AMI, as reported in the most recent HUD Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey (HUD CHAS) data;
- Percent of renter Households occupying overcrowded housing: The percent of renter-occupied housing units with more than 1.5 occupants per room, as reported in the most recent HUD CHAS data; and
- Rental vacancy rate: The percent of rental housing units that are currently vacant, as reported in the most recent HUD CHAS data.

For Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Programs:

Percent of homeowner Households that are in poverty:
 The percent of families in owner-occupied housing with incomes below the federal poverty line, as reported in

the most recent American Community Survey (ACS) data; and

 Percent of homeowner Households that are low income: The percent of Households in owner-occupied housing with incomes below 80 percent of AMI, as reported in the most recent HUD CHAS data.

Feasibility in a geographic area for the proposed Local Program or project will be based on the following factors:

For Mortgage Assistance Programs:

- Affordability of Homeownership relative to renting: The ratio of median Monthly Housing Costs for owneroccupied housing units with a Mortgage, to median Monthly Housing Costs for renter-occupied housing units, as reported in the most recent ACS data:
- Availability of homes for sale relative to the proposed lending activity: The ratio of the following:
 - The number of home sales in the previous year priced below the current median sales price of a single-family home in the county in which the program is located;
 - The number of Loans that the Applicant expects to provide in the program;
 - The Applicant will provide home sales information based on publicly available real estate transactions data (e.g., Zillow.com, Redfin.com).

<u>For Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Programs and</u> CalHome ADU/JADU Programs:

- Age of the housing stock: The percent of owneroccupied housing units over 30 years old, as reported in the most recent ACS data; and
- Percent of homeowner Households occupying overcrowded housing: The percent of owner-occupied housing units with more than 1.5 occupants per room, as reported in the most recent HUD CHAS data.

For CalHome Technical Assistance for Shared Housing Programs:

Incidence of severe cost burden for low-income renters:
 The percent of Households in renter-occupied housing units spending 50 percent or more of income on

- housing expenses, as reported in the most recent HUD CHAS data; and
- Rental vacancy rate: The percent of rental housing units that are currently vacant, as reported in the most recent HUD CHAS data.

For Serna Acquisition of Manufactured Housing Programs:

- All applications for this activity will receive 10 points for feasibility because the likelihood that they will acquire manufactured homes is absolute.
- Applicants who can demonstrate that they have site control over land zoned appropriately on which to place all of the acquired manufactured homes for which they are applying for funding will receive the full 20 points.

For Technical Assistance for Self-Help Housing Programs and Homeownership Development Project Loans or a Mortgage Assistance Program for housing newly constructed by the Applicant using funds other than CalHome or Serna funds or for housing newly acquired and substantially rehabilitated by the Applicant using funds other than CalHome or Serna funds for sale to first-time homebuyers:

 These programs and projects receive full points for feasibility. Since these programs and projects create new affordable housing units, the likelihood that they will successfully and feasibly provide affordable homes to low-income households is absolute.

Contributes to Community Revitalization as defined in Appendix A of the Guidelines, or all units to be assisted with program funds are, or will be, located within a High-Resource or Highest-Resource area, as identified on the TCAC/Department Opportunity Area Map.

10

Volunteer Labor, Self-Help Labor, or Youth Construction Skills Training Program

Applicants applying for Homeownership Development Project Loans or Self-Help Technical Assistance Homeownership Projects, or a Mortgage Assistance Program for housing newly constructed by the Applicant using funds other than CalHome or Serna funds or for

housing newly acquired and substantially rehabilitated by the Applicant using funds other than CalHome or Serna funds for sale to first-time homebuyers will receive up to 5 points to the extent that:	
 The Applicant utilizes Volunteer Labor or Self-Help Construction labor, where a minimum of five hundred (500) hours of on-site construction labor per assisted unit is provided; or The Applicant utilizes labor provided by youth participating in a construction skills training program, where a minimum of five hundred (500) hours of on-site construction labor per assisted unit is provided. The five hundred (500) hours of construction training labor shall be provided by the 16- to 24-year-old program participants; 	
Increases Affordable Housing Supply	
Applicants applying for Homeownership Development Project Loans, a Mortgage Assistance Program for housing newly constructed by the Applicant using funds other than CalHome or Serna funds or for housing newly acquired and substantially rehabilitated by the Applicant using funds other than CalHome or Serna funds for sale to first-time homebuyers, Self-Help Technical Assistance Homeownership Projects, CalHome ADU/JADU Programs, and Serna Acquisition of Manufactured Housing Programs will receive 3 points for supporting the state policy goal of increasing the supply of affordable housing.	5
An additional two points will be awarded to applications receiving 3 points as outlined above where the applicant can demonstrate the new development will be located on an infill site as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 53599(d)(3)(B).	
Prohousing Designation	
5 points will be awarded to Applicants that are jurisdictions that have received a prohousing designation.	5
MAXIMUM TOTAL POINTS	100

b. Applications for Serna funding will also be evaluated on the following additional factors:

Serna Program Criteria Defined	Maximum Points
Farmworker Need based on the number of Office of	30
Migrant Services (OMS) Migrant Family Housing Centers in	
the geographic area for the proposed Local Program or	
project, as identified in the Department's OMS Program	
Directory:	
1 OMS Center ~ 10 points	
2 OMS Centers ~ 20 points	
3 or more OMS Centers ~ 30 points	

c. Tiebreaker

In the event of tied point scores, the following tiebreakers shall be used to determine the ranking, in the order listed:

- 1. The Community Need point score
- 2. The Capacity point score
- 3. The Feasibility point score
- 4. The total number units to be assisted

V. Appeals

a. Basis of Appeals

- 1. Upon receipt of the Department's notice that an application has been determined to be incomplete, ineligible, fail threshold review, or have a reduction to the initial point score, Applicants under this Super NOFA may appeal such decision(s) to the Branch Chief or their designee pursuant to this section.
- 2. No Applicant shall have the right to appeal a decision of the Department relating to another Applicant's application (e.g., eligibility, award).

Any request to appeal HCD's decision regarding an application shall be reviewed for compliance with the Guidelines and this Super NOFA. All decisions rendered shall be made by the Director or his/her designee. The decision shall be final, binding, and conclusive, and shall constitute the final action of HCD.

3. The appeal process provided herein applies solely to decision of the Department made pursuant to this Super NOFA. For greater specificity, applicants may refer to the appeal procedure set forth in section "V. Appeals" in the Multifamily Finance Super Notice of Funding Availability dated March 30, 2022, Amended June 10, 2022, which is incorporated hereto by this reference, and which the

Department shall, to the extent not contrary to this NOFA and feasible, substantially follow.

b. Appeal Process and Deadlines

- 1. Process: To file an appeal, Applicants must submit to the Director of the Department or their designee, by the deadline set forth below, a written appeal which states all relevant facts, arguments, and evidence upon which the appeal is based. Furthermore, the Applicant must provide a detailed reference to the area or areas of the application that provide clarification and substantiation for the basis of the appeal. No new or additional information will be considered if this information would result in a competitive advantage to an Applicant. Once the written appeal is submitted to the Department, no further information of materials will be accepted or considered thereafter. Appeals are to be submitted to the Department at HOSN@hcd.ca.gov according to the deadline set forth in Department review letters.
- 2. Filing Deadline: Appeals must be received by the Department no later than five (5) business days from the date of the Department's threshold review, or initial score letters, representing the Department's decision made in response to the application.

c. Decision

Any request to appeal the Department's decision regarding an application shall be reviewed for compliance with the Guidelines and this NOFA. All decisions rendered shall be made by the Director or their designee. All decisions rendered shall be final, binding, and conclusive, and shall constitute the final action of the Department.

VI. Award Announcements and Contracts

a. Award Announcements

The Department will announce program awards on the Homeownership Super NOFA website Homeownership Super NOFA | California Department of Housing and Community Development.

b. Contracts

Recipient(s) will enter into a Standard Agreement with the Department. The Standard Agreement will contain relevant state contracting and program requirements, specific information about the award, the work to be performed, a project/program timeline, and any special conditions required to make the project feasible (Guidelines §600).

The Recipient(s) shall remain a party to the Standard Agreement for the agreement's entire term. The Standard Agreement allows a maximum of 36-months from the date the Standard Agreement is fully executed by all parties to expend

funds, except for Homeownership Project Developments which are allowed a maximum of 60 months (Guidelines §603).

The Department may exercise its reasonable discretion to disencumber funds or to grant an extension of time for completion (Guidelines §603). Any extensions are subject to any and all applicable encumbrances, deadlines, and limitations, including, but not limited to, HSC §54006(g). Documentation to support the Recipient's expenditure of funds shall be received prior to the contract expiration date. The Standard Agreement expires at the end of 42 months from the date the Standard Agreement is fully executed by all parties (or 66 months for Homeownership Project Developments), unless extended. Recipients remain subject to the terms of the 20-year Monitoring Agreement (Guidelines §600).

VII. Other State Requirements

The Recipient agrees to comply with all applicable state and federal laws, rules, Guidelines, and regulations that pertain to health and safety, labor, fair employment practices, equal opportunity, and all other matters applicable to the program or project, the Recipient, its contractors or subcontractors, and any Loan or grant activity, including without limitation the following:

- Guidelines §204 Local Program/Project Administration
- Guidelines §400.7 Homeownership Development Project Requirements

Where the proposed program or project type presents a fair housing issue (e.g. Serna housing), the Department reserves discretion to require a fair housing legal opinion.

VIII. Other Terms and Conditions

a. Right to Modify or Suspend

The Department reserves the right, at is sole discretion, to suspend, amend, or modify the provisions of this Super NOFA at any time, including without limitation, the amount of funds available hereunder. If such an action occurs, the Department will notify all interested parties via the Department's Homeownership email list and will post the revisions to the Homeownership Super NOFA website https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/homeownership-super-nofa. Please be sure and subscribe to the Homeownership email list at https://www.hcd.ca.gov/email-signup.

b. Conflicts

It is the duty and responsibility of the Applicant and Sponsor to review any funding source they obtain for a Project to ensure each of the requirements for those funding sources are compatible with Department program requirements.

In the event of any conflict between the terms of this Super NOFA and the Guidelines, state, federal law regulation(s), or any number of them (collectively,

"Controlling Law"), the Controlling Law shall prevail., Applicants are deemed to have fully read and understand all applicable state and federal laws, regulations, and Guidelines pertaining to the relevant Program, and understand and agree that the Department shall not be responsible for any errors or omissions in the preparation of this Super NOFA.

675 Wildwood Avenue Rio Dell, CA 95562 (707) 764-3532 (707) 764-5480 (fax)



DATE:

February 27, 2023

TO:

Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM:

Travis Sanborn, Finance Director

THROUGH: Kyle Knopp, City Manager

SUBJECT:

Resolution 1576-2023 Approval of California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) Form 130 Designating Agents Necessary to Provide for All Matters Pertaining to State and Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)

Reimbursements

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

Adopt Resolution 1576-2023 approving the California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) Form 130, designating agents necessary to provide for all matters pertaining to State and Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) reimbursements.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

The December 20, 2022 Earthquake caused extensive damage to public and private infrastructure throughout the City of Rio Dell. A local state of emergency was proclaimed in the immediate aftermath by the Rio Dell City Council. This proclamation directed all City employees take steps required to qualify the City for reimbursement from the FEMA and for other state and federal relief as may be available to reimburse the City for the expenses incurred from the emergency.

In order for the City to be eligible for future reimbursement from the federal or state government, the City Council must approve a CalOES Form 130 – Designation of Applicant's Agency Resolution for Non-State Agencies (Form 130). The Form 130 designates the positions the City Council authorizes to apply for public assistance and recovery funding on behalf of the City, for a three-year period. The proposed action would designate the City Manager and Finance Director as agents who can apply for possible reimbursement.

Shall the Council approve the Form 130, staff will submit all necessary documents to CalOES as required for future reimbursement requests. Over the coming months, staff will continue to monitor and apply for any reimbursement funding opportunities to recover costs incurred from the disaster event.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution 1576-2023 CalOES Form 130



RESOLUTION NO. 1576-2023 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S AGENT RESOLUTION FOR NON-STATE AGENCIES

ÖES	STATE OF CALIFORNIA CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S AGENT RESOLUTION NON-STATE AGENCIES OES-FPD-130 (Rev. 10-2022)
	DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S AGENT RESOLUTI

RECOVERY DIRECTORATE FINANCIAL PROCESSING DIVISION

🥙 NON-STATE AG		LUTION	Cal OES ID No:
OES-FPD-130 (Re	v. 10-2022)		
DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S AGENT RESOLUTION FOR NON-STATE AGENCIES			
BE IT RESOLVED E	BY THE City Council	_OF THE City	of Rio Dell
	(Governing Body)	(Name of Applicant)
THAT	City Manager		_, OR
	(Title of Authorized	Agent)	
	Finance Director		, OR
	(Title of Authorized	Agent)	
	(Title of Authorized	Agent)	-
is hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of the City of Rio Dell			
(Name of Applicant) a public entity established under the laws of the State of California, this application and to file it with the California Governor's Office of Emergency Services for the purpose of obtaining federal financial assistance for any existing or future grant program, including, but not limited to any of the following:			
- Federally declared Disaster (DR), Fire Mitigation Assistance Grant (FMAG),			

- California State Only Disaster (CDAA), Immediate Services Program (ISP), Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC), Legislative Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program (LPDM), under
- Public Law 93-288 as amended by the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act of 1988, and/or state financial assistance under the California Disaster Assistance Act.
- Flood Mitigation Assistance Program (FMA), under Section 1366 of the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968.
- National Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program (NEHRP) 42 U.S. Code 7704 (b) ((2) (A) (ix) and 42 U.S. Code 7704 (b) (2) (B) National Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program, and also The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2018, Div. F. Department of Homeland Security Appropriations Act, 2018, Pub. L. No. 115-141

 California Early Earthquake Warning 	(CEEW) under CA Gov Code - Gov, Title 2,
Div. 1, Chapter 7, Article 5, Sections 8	3587.8, 8587.11, 8587.12
that the City of Rio Dell	, a public entity established under the
(Name of Applicant)	
aws of the State of California, hereby aut	horizes its agent(s) to provide to the

Governor's Office of Emergency Services for all matters pertaining to such state disaster assistance the assurances and agreements required.

Rev. 10-2022 Page 1 of 4 OFS-FPD-130 OES-FPD-130 (Rev. 10-2022)

Please check the appropriate box below				
This is a universal resolution and is effective for all open and future				
disasters/grants declared up to three (3) years following the date of	of approval.			
This is a disaster/grant specific resolution and is effective for only				
disaster/grant number(s):				
Passed and approved this 27 day of February 20 23	Passed and approved this 27 day of February 20 23			
(Name and Title of Governing Body Representative)				
(Name and Title of Governing Body Representative)				
(Name and Title of Governing Body Representative)				
CERTIFICATION				
Karen Dunham duly appointed and City Clerk	of			
(Title)				
City of Rio Dell , do hereby certify that the above (Name of Applicant)	is a true and			
Correct copy of a resolution passed and approved by the City Council	il			
correct copy of a resolution passed and approved by the City Council	ning Body)			
of theon the 27 day of February	. 20 23			
(Name of Applicant)				
City Clerk				
(Signature) (Title)				

Rev. 10-2022

Page 2 of 4

OES-FPD-130